

Nordisk Sikkerhet AS
Tender title: turnkey supply of automated radiation portal monitor and personnel
contamination monitor systems
Project title: "Supply of monitoring and detection equipment for industrial site of
Prydniprovsky chemical plant (PChP), Ukraine"

Invitation to tender

Turnkey supply of automated radiation portal monitor and personnel contamination monitor systems

Open Tender Procedure

Tender publication date 03 June 2024

Contents

GEN	NERAL	4
1	Description of the Contract	4
2	Lot Description	4
3	Maximum expected value of the Contract	5
4	Scope of supply	5
5	Origin of Goods to be Supplied	5
6	Eligibility to tender	5
ADI	MINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS	5
7	Content of Tender Documents	5
8	Tender schedule	6
9	Amendment of Tender Documents	6
10	Clarification of Tender Documents	6
11	Pre-tender Meeting or Site Visit	7
CON	MPETITION PROVISIONS	7
12	Type of tender procedure	7
13	Legal framework	7
14	One Tender per Lot	7
15	Alternative Tender	7
16	Costs of preparing Tenders	7
17	Submission of Tenders	7
18	Opening of tenders	8
19	Public transparency	8
20	Confidential information	8
21	Negotiations and withdrawal of submitted tenders	8
22	Evaluation of Tenders	8
23	Return of Tenders	9
TEN	NDER STRUCTURE AND FORMAT	9
24	Format of Tender	9
25	Structure of Tender	9
26	Language of Tender Documents and Tender	10
27	Content of Tender	10
28	Tender Prices	12

29	Tender Currencies and Payments	13
30	Period of Validity of Tender	13
31	Deviations and reservations	13
32	Qualification criteria	13
AW	ARD OF CONTRACT	14
33	Award Criteria	14
34	Contracting Authority's Right to Accept or to Reject any Tender	14
	Pre-financing and Performance Guarantees	
36	Notification of Award and Signing of Contract	15

Nordisk Sikkerhet AS (NorSik), hereinafter referred to as the Contracting Authority, is an international project management, consultancy, and research organization in Norway specializing in chemical, biological, radiological, and nuclear matters. NorSik is authorized by the Norwegian Government to implement a Project 'Supply of monitoring and detection equipment for industrial site of Prydniprovsky chemical plant (PChP), Ukraine' (Avtale nr. 804, 24/11/2023). The project is implemented within the framework of the Norwegian Government's Action plan for nuclear safety and security.

For purposes of abovementioned Project, Nordisk Sikkerhet AS intends to procure "automated radiation portal monitor and personnel contamination monitor systems" described in these tender documents and hereby invites potential suppliers to submit tender offers.

The successful tenderer shall be awarded a supply contract that is provided in the tender documents.

The tender is published and implemented via Mercell tender platform: https://my.mercell.com/ (online portal). All tender documents are available on the Mercell tender platform and this is also where the tender offer must be submitted by potential suppliers. All communication with the Contracting Authority regarding this tender shall take place via Mercell tender platform.

GENERAL

1 Description of the Contract

The scope of the Contract will include the design, manufacture, testing, delivery (including unloading), turnkey installation and commissioning of automated radiation portal monitor and personnel contamination monitor systems, onsite training of personnel, and warranty service.

The supplies shall be compliant with all applicable technical regulations of the country of Recipient.

The supplies shall be DDP¹ delivered to STE "Barrier", Anoshkina Avenue 179B, Kamianske, Ukraine. The time limits for delivery shall be 250 days.

The tentative contract is given in the Annex "Tentative Contract" to the tender documents.

2 Lot Description

In the framework of the Contract, entrance points on the Recipient's site shall be equipped with Radiation Portal Monitors (RPMs) and Personnel contamination monitors to detect the unauthorized movement of RN materials and radiological contamination.

The Contract implies the establishment of automated monitoring system(s), which comprise(s) of the following:

- Vehicle radiation portal monitors (3 sets) with gamma detectors (plastic scintillator),
- Pedestrian radiation portal monitors (3 sets) with gamma detectors (plastic scintillator),
- Personnel contamination monitors (4 sets) with alpha- and beta-radiation detectors (detector type is to be defined by the tenderer),
- Video surveillance system,
- Application software for automated radiation monitoring,
- Operator's workplaces (5 sets) and other equipment.

¹DDP (Delivered Duty Paid) - Incoterms 2010 International Chamber of Commerce

The radiation portal monitor and personnel contamination monitor system(s) and video surveillance shall be linked via local area network (LAN) based on high-speed optical-fiber cable) for data networking to be installed by the Contractor within a scope of the supply.

Detailed information regarding both technical and service requirements is provided in the Annex "Specifications".

3 Maximum expected value of the Contract

Maximum expected value of the Contract is as follows:

LOT: NOK 9 500 000.

The expected value of the Contract is the maximum value, which cannot be exceeded. Should the tender price exceed the referred-to maximum value, then the tender shall be rejected for failing to meet the tender conditions.

4 Scope of supply

The Contracting Authority reserves the right to vary (either reduce or increase) the quantity of the goods to be supplied or reduce the services to be rendered under this Contract after the evaluation of tenders and prior to award of the Contract. Where such a modification is made it shall not exceed the greater of 25% of the total tender price. The unit prices used in the tender shall be applicable to the quantities procured under the variation.

5 Origin of Goods to be Supplied

5.1 All supplies and equipment shall be manufactured in one or more of the following countries: EU/EEA member states, Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zealand, South Korea, Switzerland, Ukraine, United Kingdom and/or the United States of America, excluding those countries currently under sanctions by the Governments of Norway and Ukraine.

6 Eligibility to tender

- 6.1 This tender is open to all legal persons established in the countries mentioned in section 5.1 above.
- 6.2 To be eligible for participation in this tender procedure, tenderers must prove to the satisfaction of the Contracting Authority that they comply with the necessary legal, technical and financial requirements and have the means to carry out the contract effectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

7 Content of Tender Documents

- 7.1 This tender package comprises the following documents:
 - (1) Procurement notice;
 - (2) Invitation to tender;
 - (3) Annex "Specifications";
 - (4) Annex "Letter of tender";
 - (5) Annex "Tender Form";
 - (6) Annex "Tenderer's Questionnaire":
 - (7) Annex "Tentative Contract";

- (8) Annex "Pre-financing Guarantee Form";
- (9) Annex "Performance Guarantee Form";
- (10) Annex "Tender checklist".
- (11) Annex "Letter of Acceptance".

8 Tender schedule

Activity	Dates	Note
Invitation to tender issued	03.06.2024	
Pre-tender meeting or site visit	N/A	
Deadline for request for clarifications from the Contracting Authority	01.07.2024	up to 14 calendar days before the deadline for submission of tenders
Deadline for submission of tenders	15.07.2024	17.00 Oslo time (CET)
Notification of award to the successful tenderer*	29.07.2024	
Standstill period*	29.07.2024 08.08.2024	
Signing of Contract*	09.08.2024	

Note: * Provisional date

9 Amendment of Tender Documents

- 9.1 Any corrections, additions or alterations of the tender documents, as well as questions and answers in anonymous form, will be announced via Mercell Tender Platform and will be available on the Norwegian national procurement database Doffin and the EU Tenders Electronic Daily (TED).
- 9.2 Discovery of errors in the tender documents should be conveyed in writing to the Contracting Authority via Mercell tender platform.
- 9.3 The Contracting Authority may, prior to the tender submission deadline, make non-material corrections, supplementations or alterations to the tender documents.
- 9.4 To give prospective tenderers reasonable time in which to take such changes into account in preparing their tenders, the Contracting Authority may extend the deadline for the submission of tenders.

10 Clarification of Tender Documents

- 10.1 A prospective tenderer requiring any clarification on any aspect of the tender documents may notify the Contracting Authority accordingly in writing via Mercell tender platform.
- 10.2 Any contact between the Contracting Authority and a tenderer shall be in writing in English.

- 10.3 Any request for clarification must be sent in writing via Mercell tender platform no later than fourteen (14) calendar days before the deadline for submission of tender offers.
- 10.4 Questions and answers will be made available to all tenderers in anonymous form via Mercell tender platform at: https://my.mercell.com/ and will be available on the Norwegian national procurement database Doffin and the EU Tenders Electronic Daily (TED).
- 10.5 Any prospective tenderers seeking to establish contacts during the tender period with either the Recipient and/or the Contracting Authority outside of the official communication channels outlined in the invitation to tender may be excluded from the tender procedure.

11 Pre-tender Meeting or Site Visit

11.1 No pre-tender meeting or site visit shall take place during this tender.

COMPETITION PROVISIONS

12 Type of tender procedure

12.1 The tender will be conducted as an open procedure.

13 Legal framework

13.1 The tender procedure will be conducted according to the Norwegian Public Procurement Act (Lov om offentlige anskaffelser av 17.06.2016 nr. 73 med tilhøyrande forskrifter), and the provisions set out in the tender documents.

https://anskaffelser.no/nn/avtaler-og-regelverk/lov-og-forskrifter-om-offentlege-anskaffingar

14 One Tender Offer per Tenderer

- 14.1 Tenderers may submit only one tender offer. Tenders for parts of a Lot will not be considered.
- 14.2 Each tenderer may submit only one tender offer independently or may participate only in one joint venture or consortium as a partner.

15 Alternative Tender

15.1 Tenderers may not submit variants (alternative tenders).

16 Costs of preparing Tenders

16.1 The tenderer shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its tender. The Contracting Authority will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the tendering process.

17 Submission of Tenders

- 17.1 Tenders must be received by the Contracting Authority on 15th July 2024 17.00 Oslo time (CET) at the latest.
- 17.2 A tender is delivered to and received by the Contracting Authority when it arrived at the Contracting Authority via Mercell tender platform: https://my.mercell.com/

- 17.3 The deadline for receipt of tender offers is absolute and the reason for a tender offer being late is irrelevant.
- 17.4 Any tender offer received by the Contracting Authority after the deadline prescribed above will be rejected.

18 Opening of tenders

18.1 There will not be a public opening of tenders. The Contracting Authority will open the submitted tenders after the submission deadline.

19 Public transparency

- 19.1 Public access to submitted tenders and other information related to this tender is governed by the Norwegian Freedom of Information Act "Offentlegova" of 19. May 2006 no 16 and the Freedom of Information regulation (FOR-2008-10-17-1119).
- 19.2 Generally, all information related to the tender is publicly available after the tender evaluation period. However, the public will not have access to confidential information, e.g. trade secrets.

20 Confidential information

20.1 The Contracting Authority and any person working for the Contracting Authority shall keep confidential any and all information s/he obtains knowledge of in relation to the contract, provided such information relates to technical devices, utilities, technical know-how and trade secrets which are of importance to the relevant entity's competitive situation.

21 Negotiations and withdrawal of submitted tenders

- 21.1 The open procedure does not allow for negotiations at any time.
- 21.2 A Tenderer may withdraw a submitted tender by written notification prior to the submission deadline and may submit a new, revised tender offer prior to the tender submission deadline. No tender may be altered after the tender submission deadline.
- 21.3 After the tender submission deadline, the Contracting Authority may contact the Tenderer to clarify certain aspects of the tender, if required. At the discretion of the Contracting Authority the Tenderer may be requested to provide clarifications, statements or documentary proofs (e.g., official documents, certificates, records of test, etc.) supporting the information submitted in the tender or the compliance to the tender requirements. A failure to provide the requested information within a time period specified by the Contacting Authority may lead to the rejection of the tender.

22 Evaluation of Tenders

- 22.1 Information relating to the evaluation, clarification and comparison of tenders, as well as the contract award will not be disclosed to tenderers or any other persons not officially concerned with the tender evaluation process until the contract has been awarded to the successful tenderer. Any effort by a tenderer to influence the examination and evaluation of tenders as well as award decisions may result in invalidation of its tender and its disqualification as a tenderer.
- 22.2 Tenders found to be technically compliant shall be checked for any arithmetical errors in computation and summation. Errors will be corrected by the evaluation committee as follows:

- 1) where there is a discrepancy between amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will be the amount taken into account;
- 2) where there is a discrepancy between a unit price and the total amount derived from the multiplication of the unit price and the quantity, the unit price as quoted will be the price taken into account.

Amounts corrected in this way will be binding on the tenderer. If the tenderer does not accept them, its tender will be rejected.

23 Return of Tenders

23.1 The Contracting Authority will not return submitted tenders.

TENDER STRUCTURE AND FORMAT

24 Format of Tender

- 24.1 Tenders shall comply with the following condition:
 - The tender offer files shall be provided in PDF-format. Each document shall be saved as a separate file and named in accordance with the structure described in section 25, e.g. "1 Letter of tender.pdf", "2 Tender form.pdf", etc.

25 Structure of Tender

25.1 Tenders shall be structured as described below. The table below indicates the sections and related documents that have to be submitted by the tenderer in the provided order. The clarification references (cf.) serve as source references where more detailed information can be obtained.

Section	Doc.nr.	Document	Cf.
General			
	1	Letter of tender	Annex "Letter of tender"
Financial Proposal			
	2	Tender form	Annex "Tender form", Section 27.1
Qualification			
	3	Duly authorized signature	Section 27.1
	4	Tenderer's questionnaire	Annex "Tenderer's Questionnaire", section 27.1 and 32
		Suitability to pursue activity	

	5	Document of establishment	Section 27.2
	6	Confirmation of solvency	Section 27.2
	7	Litigation history	Section 27.2
	8	List of subcontractors	Section 27.2
		Technical qualification	
	9	Copy of certificate	Section 27.2 and 32
	10	Copy of ISO certificate or a certificate of compliance with other equivalent standard	Section 27.2 and 32
		Professional qualification	
	11	Previously implemented contracts	Section 27.2 and 32
	12	Provision of professional resources for personnel training	Section 27.2 and 32
		Financial and economic standing	
	13	Provision of financial and economic standing	Section 27.2 and 32
Technical Proposal			
	14	Technical proposal	Annex "Specifications", Sections 27.1 item (5).
Supplementary, if appl	icable		
	15	List of deviations	Sections 27.1 item (6) and 30.
Tender completion			
	16	Tender Checklist	Annex "Tender Checklist".

26 Language of Tender Documents and Tender

- 26.1 The tender and all documents related to it shall be made and submitted in English. Any questions from the Tenderer and responses from the Contracting Authority must be made in English.
- 26.2 If any original documents, e.g. official certificates, are only available in a language other than English, such documents shall be submitted with an accompanying English translation.

27 Content of Tender

27.1 The tender submitted by the tenderer shall comprise the following:

- (1) Letter of tender in the format indicated in Annex "Letter of Tender", duly completed and signed by a tenderer.
- (2) Financial proposal in the format indicated in Annex "Tender Form", duly completed and signed by a tenderer.
- (3) Duly authorised signature: an official document (power of attorney, notary statement, etc.) proving that the person who signs on behalf of the company/joint venture/consortium is duly authorised to do so.
- (4) Tenderer's Questionnaire in the format indicated in Annex "Tenderer's Questionnaire" of the tender documents, with the supporting documents for the qualification criteria as specified in section 27.2 below.
- (5) Tenderer's Technical Proposal in the format indicated in Annex "Specifications" of the tender documents as well as the following:
 - Detailed technical description of the supplies, including technical proposal for the systems to be supplies, specifications of equipment, outline drawings, principal diagram of the systems;
 - Technical proposal related to the services: design, manufacture, factory acceptance testing, packing, transportation, delivery, turn-key installation and commissioning, and onsite personnel training;
 - Proposal for warranty and after-sales services;
 - Statement of compliance with the scope and language of the documents required with the supply;
 - Statement of compliance with the scope and terms of supply and services as specified in Annex "Specifications";
 - Statement of compliance with the technical parameters as specified in Annex "Specifications";
 - Statement of compliance with the Contracting Authority's requirements to origin of goods.
- (6) List of deviations to the technical and commercial conditions set forth in the tender documents, if any. (Note: the Contracting Authority reserves the right to accept or reject any deviations)
- 27.2 The tenderer shall provide supporting documents that the tenderer satisfies the qualification criteria, as well as other documents that can demonstrate the tenderer's experience and capabilities and can help the Contracting Authority to evaluate its tender. Such documents shall include the following:

Suitability to pursue activity:

- copies of original documents certifying the establishment of the company and its legal status, place of registration, and address;
- list of proposed subcontractors and the percentage to be subcontracted, if any (i.e., the tenderer must indicate if he intends to subcontract any part (mentioning which part) of the contract. In case the Tenderer does not intend to subcontract, it should be clearly stated);

- confirmation of solvency;
- tenderer's litigation history for the past three (3) years, including any present litigation: such documentation may be presented in free-form and shall include the parties to the litigation, its subject-matter, the amounts involved, and verdicts;

<u>Technical qualification of tenderer:</u>

- copy of documents attesting to the certification of equipment in the country of the Recipient or in EU/EEA countries in accordance with the Recipient's Legislation in force (i.e., certificate, declaration of compliance or in other appropriate forms);
- copy of certificate of compliance of Quality Management System with the ISO 9001-2008 standard or other equivalent standard.

Professional qualification of tenderer:

- documentation attesting to the successful implementation of contract (s) for the supply and commissioning of similar automated radiation monitoring systems with a cumulative budget of at least EUR 1 000 000, over the last seven (7) years (i.e., letters of reference from Contracting Authority/purchasers or in other appropriate forms);
- proposed human, technical/technological, time resources, the necessary experience and knowledge for personnel training (including a list of nominated experts, their professional qualifications and experience(s), which are relevant to the planned training course, as well as their role in the training programme).

Economic and financial standing:

- balance sheets for the previous three years;
- profit and loss account (P&L) for the previous three years. If such documents are not required by the legislation of the country of origin of the Tenderer, other financial statements for the specified period should be provided.
- 27.3 Any omission or failure to provide any information required may constitute a sufficient reason to reject the tender.

28 Tender Price

- 28.1 The Financial proposal shall be performed as in the format given in the Annex "Tender form" of the tender documents, duly completed and signed by a tenderer.
- 28.2 The Financial proposal shall be calculated on the basis of DDP for the supplies rendered. The total tender price shall cover all obligations of the tenderer pursuant to, or to be reasonably interfered from, the tender documents.
- 28.3 When preparing its financial offer, the tenderer shall quote all prices excluding VAT and import duties.
- 28.4 The Equipment, both imported to Ukraine and procured in Ukraine, shall be exempt from taxes and duties pursuant to the following:
 - Agreement on technical and financial cooperation, signed between the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine and the Government of the Kingdom of Norway on 18 October 2016;
 - Agreement on Cooperation in Nuclear and Radiation Safety, Decommissioning of the Chernobyl Nuclear Power Plant and Transformation of the "Shelter Object" into an Ecologically Safe System, signed between the Government of the Kingdom of Norway and

the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine on 30 November 2012, with amendment according to Diplomatic Note of Ukrainian Embassy in the Kingdom of Norway No. 61220/22-012-64 dated 20 January 2016.

29 Tender Currencies and Payments

- 29.1 Tender prices shall be quoted in Norwegian Krone (NOK).
- 29.2 Payments under the contract shall be made in NOK.

30 Deviations and reservations

- 30.1 The Tenderers may request the Contracting Authority to consider minor deviations, objections or reservations from the requirements of the tender documents provided that such deviations are substantially justified.
- 30.2 Any minor reservation or deviation from any requirements, provisions or specifications in any of the procurement documents shall be clearly and expressly stated in the tender. Any reservations or deviations shall be described in such a way that the Contracting Authority is able to assess the deviation without contacting the Tenderer.
- 30.3 The Contracting Authority reserves the right to accept or reject any deviations.

31 Period of Validity of Tender

- 31.1 Tenders shall remain valid for the period of one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days after the deadline for submission of tenders.
- 31.2 The Contracting Authority may request that the tenderers extend the period of validity for an additional period of thirty (30) calendar days without adjustment to their prices.

QUALIFICATION CRITERIA

32 Qualification criteria

- 32.1 To be eligible for participation in this tender procedure, tenderers must comply with the minimum qualification criteria. The following qualification criteria will be applied to tenderers. In the case of tenders submitted by a consortium, these qualification criteria will be applied to the consortium as a whole:
 - 1) Economic and financial capacity of tenderer:
 - (a) the average annual turnover of the tenderer must exceed EUR 1 000 000.
 - (b) the averages of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning and end of year must be positive.

2) <u>Technical capacity of tenderer:</u>

- (a) at least 20% of all staff working for the tenderer in fields related to this contract are permanent.
- (b) a tenderer and his subcontractor(s), if any, should have a valid Quality Management System compliant to the ISO 9001-2008 standard or other equivalent standard.

(c) the proposed radiation monitoring equipment shall be certified in the country of Recipient or in EU/EEA-countries in accordance with the Recipient's Legislation in force.

3) Professional qualification of tenderer:

- (a) a tenderer should have implemented at least one contract for the supply and commissioning of similar automated radiation monitoring systems, with a cumulative budget of at least EUR 1 000 000, over the last seven (7) years.
- (b) a tenderer shall have the following documented resources to conduct effective training:
- sufficient human resources having relevant qualification and knowledge for effective training in operation of the purchased equipment;
- sufficient time resources to conduct effective training;
- technical/technological resources and knowledge;
- the necessary experience.

AWARD OF CONTRACT

33 Award Criteria

- 33.1 Tenders shall be reviewed and evaluated by a tender committee comprised of representatives from the Contracting Authority. Tenders shall be examined to determine their substantial responsiveness to the invitation for tenders and tender documents and evaluated following the technique described below.
- 33.2 The Contracting Authority will award the contract to the successful tenderer whose tender has been determined to be substantially and technically responsive and who has submitted the lowest price(s). The sole award criterion will be the price.

34 Contracting Authority's Right to Accept or to Reject any Tender

34.1 The Contracting Authority reserves the right to accept or reject any tender, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected tenderer or tenderers or any obligation to inform the affected tenderer or tenderers of the grounds for the Contracting Authority's action.

35 Pre-financing and Performance Guarantees

- 35.1 Generally, the successful tenderer will be asked to provide the Performance guarantees of 5 % of the amount of the Contract and the Pre-Financing Guarantee for the full amount of prepayment at the signing of the Contract.
- 35.2 The Contracting Authority reserves the right to waive the Pre-Financing Guarantee requirements, if the Contractor does not require the advance payment for the works. In this case, the Contractor bears responsibility to implement the contract using their own means. A 100% payment will be made to the contractor by the Contracting Authority upon the delivery and provisional acceptance of the goods.
- 35.3 For a minor contract (≤ NOK 200 000), the Contracting Authority, depending on its assessment of the risks, may decide to waive the Performance Guarantee requirement. In this case, the decision will take into consideration the tenderer's litigation history, available resources and means, previously implemented contracts, etc.

- 35.4 Within twenty (20) calendar days after receipt of the Contract the successful tenderer shall sign the Contract and return it to the Contracting Authority along with a corresponding Pre-Financing and Performance Guarantees, if required.
- 35.5 Where the successful tenderer fails to sign the Contract or furnish a corresponding Pre-Financing and Performance Guarantees, if required, within thirty (30) calendar days after the Letter of Acceptance and receipt of the Contract, the Contracting Authority shall have the right to deem the award of contract null and void. In the event of avoidance of the award of contract the Contracting Authority shall refer to the next successful tenderer.

36 Notification of Award and Signing of Contract

- 36.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of tender validity, the Contracting Authority will notify the successful tenderer via Mercell tender platform that its tender offer has been accepted. The Letter of Acceptance will constitute formation of the Contract.
- 36.2 The contract shall consist of all agreements between the Contracting Authority and the successful tenderer. It shall be signed by the Contracting Authority and sent to the successful tenderer for signature within thirty (30) calendar days after the Letter of Acceptance.
- 36.3 The Contracting Authority will promptly notify the other tenderers via Mercell tender platform that their tenders have not been successful.